
 

STAFF REPORT 
7/30/2025 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Lincoln Bogard, Finance Director 
Ruben Ramirez, Controller  

SUBJECT: Review and Provide Feedback on the Proposed Annual Budget And 
Organizational Structure for Fiscal Year 2025-26 and its Component Units 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Review and provide feedback for the annual budget, organizational structure, and policy changes for 
fiscal year 2025-26 for the City of Coachella and its component units. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
I am pleased to submit for your review the proposed budget for the City of Coachella for all funds and 
departments and its component units for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2026. 
 

In the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2025-2026, the City of Coachella and all its component units 
have budgeted revenues of $144.24 million and appropriations of $159.51 million. $117.95 million of 

these appropriations are for non-general fund capital expenditures. The City’s General Fund has 
budgeted revenues of $39.13 million and expenditure appropriations of $41.56 million resulting in a 
$2.43 million budgeted deficit. The General Fund is projected to have unrestricted reserves of $13.37 

million at June 30, 2026.  Details are provided in the general fund schedules and tables that follow 
 

HISTORY: 
 
During the fiscal years 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 the City of Coachella saw a steady recovery for our 
community. The prolonged slow recovery from the 2008 recession and the pandemic continue to affect 
our local economy. The voters passed Measure U, a sales tax rate increase of 1% in November of 2014. 
These funds were critical in allowing us to finish fiscal year 2023-2024 within budget. However, during 
these three fiscal years the City incurred steep increases in our contracts with Riverside County Sheriff 
and Riverside County/Cal Fire for Police and Fire services. The Police Department expenditures budget 
increased by $1,583,537 or 14.05% and the Fire Department Expenditures increased by $426,405 
(7.39%) for a combined total of $2,009,942 or a 11.80% increase in Public Safety expenditures budget 
over the last year. Management has identified cuts for Council consideration that would bring the General 
Fund budget deficit down to $605,567 for fiscal year 2025-2026. 
 
 
 
 



 CHALLENGES AND PRIORITIES: 
 
Public Safety Cost Increase 

Increases in public safety costs continue to be a challenge for the City.  The County of Riverside’s 
continuous increase to public safety services is limiting the amounts available to address capital needs, 
maintenance and operations in existing and future facilities. In Fiscal Year 2024-25, there was a total 
increase over the previous Fiscal Year to Police and Fire of $1,300,743, which represents slightly over 
12.2%.  For the 2025-26 Fiscal Year, the total amount is expected to increase another $890,605 or 
approximately 7.45%. For actual expenditures The City anticipates the increases to continue as 
Riverside County shifts more cost recovery of police services on to its contract cities.  
 

ECONOMIC FORECASTS: 
 
The City of Coachella will endeavor to maintain a diversified and stable revenue base to minimize the 
effects of economic fluctuations. All estimates are conservative. General fund revenues are categorized 
into seven broad categories taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, intergovernmental, fines 
and forfeitures, interest and other revenues and transfers in from other funds.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The vast majority of general fund revenues are from taxes and are discretionary in nature. The general 
fund’s position as the originating fund for all service components, i.e., Water, Sanitary, Fire, Police, 
Streets, and Redevelopment efforts has resulted in the general fund now receiving service charges from 
all funds. The process of ending Redevelopment has resulted in a significant loss of administrative 
funds.  Redevelopment tax increment funds are still available to perform administrative and legal 
activities required to dispose of assets and restructure financing but they are limited and do not cover 
the full cost of the redevelopment agency dissolution. The City’s 102 employees’ salary costs are 
disbursed among 16 different departments and funds to be able to ascertain both direct and indirect 
costs from the family of employees for City services rendered  

 



General Fund Expenditures by Department 

The general fund is the main operating fund of the City of Coachella. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except where legal, administrative or Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
requirements cause them to be accounted for in another fund. The City’s general fund activity includes 
departments that serve the general public as well as functions that provide administrative support to the 
various departments within the government and its agencies. The table shown below provides a summary 
list of the general fund Departments and their respective budgets. 

 

 City of Coachella 
General Fund Historical and Projected Expenditures by Department 

Fiscal Years 2025-2026 
 
 
 

  



Other Funds 

The City has various funds and special districts which are designated subdivisions of the general fund or 
are classified as component units. These other funds all have the Coachella City Council as the governing 
body and have their respective budgets approved by the Council for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2026.  

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted for specific purposes. Special Revenue funds include State and Federal grants, funds to be used 
solely for capital projects, and the property taxes and charges collected by the County Tax-Collector’s 
Office for the Successor Agency of the Former Coachella Redevelopment Agency and the Coachella 
Fire Protection District. 

 Capital Improvement Funds are used to account for project costs for the building of infrastructure to 
attract business and expand capacities. The Capital Improvement Program found in the last budget 
section is a listing of proposed and existing projects for the acquisition and construction of capital assets. 
These programs are outlined in the proposed five-year capital budget and existing capital projects. The 
five-year Capital Improvement Plan includes proposed financing for the 2025-26 fiscal year with 
projected revenue sources and project costs for the next four fiscal years. The Engineering Department 
has provided a comprehensive capital improvements plan that utilizes developer impact fees, grants and 
self-generated funds from the City’s enterprise operations. Although the funds required for the proposed 
fiscal year projects are available, future year’s projects may have a “To Be Determined” footnote if funds 
have not yet been identified.  

Budget Preparation and Presentation 

Individual general fund departments have included their accomplishments for the current fiscal year, 
their goals for the 2025-26 budget year and are presenting budget issues to the Council for your review 
and approval that will allow the Council to standardize future budget matters and keep the Council’s 
policies in line with the City’s priorities. 

I would like to thank Public Works Director and City Engineer Andrew Simmons, Utilities Manager 
Castulo Estrada, Finance Director Lincoln Bogard, Controller Ruben Ramirez, the Finance Department 
staff, Economic Development Director Celina Jimenez, Development Services Director Kendra Reif, 
and all the City personnel who contributed to the entire budget process. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Fiscal year 2025-26 Proposed Budget 

  

  

 


